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May 7, 2013

Attention:
Director
Re GMA Holdings, Inc.’s
Definitive Information Statement .
Gentlemen:
Our client, GMA Holdings, Inc. (the
“Corporation”) filed its Preliminary Information

Statement (SEC Form 20-I8) on April 22, 2013. In your
letter dated April 23, 2013, which we received on April
25, 2013, ydu directed our client to amend the same in
accordance with the remarks in your checklist attached
to the letter..

In compliance thereof, we have incorporated the
following:

(1) Disclosure regarding the equity ownership of
foreigners (page 8)

(2) Undertaking that the 1st Quarter Report for the
period ended March 31, 2013 shall be made
available during the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting (page 20)

(3) Market price information as -of the latest
practicable date (page 23)



(4) The number of holders of each class as of
April 15, 2013 (page 23) -

(5) Names of the Top twenty (20) Shareholders of
Each Class (page 23). Note that the Company
only has seven (7) shareholders, all of whom
own only common shares

(6) Additional Disclosure Requirement (SRC Rule
68, as amended October 2011) (last page of the
‘attachments to the Financial Statements).

With this, the undersigned respectfully request the Honorable
Commission to approve its Definitive Information Statement so the Company

may distribute the same to its stockholders.

Thank you very much.

Very truly yours,

BELO GOZON ELMA
PAREL ASUNCION & LUCILA

By:

KX RTO O. PAREL

e

PAUV¥ ERIK D. MANALO

=y -

MARIA ESTELITA B. AR
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May 7 ,2013
NOTICE TO STOCKHOLDERS:

Gilherto R. Duavit, Jr,
Felipe L. Gozon

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Jaime C. Laya

Artemio V. Panganiban
Manuel P. Quiogue
Felipe 8. Yalong

Dear Stockholder:

Please be informed that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of GMA Holdings, Inc.
will be held on May 31, 2013 (Friday) at 10:00 a.m. at Aubergine Restaurant Patisserie
32" and 5" Building, 5% Avenue cor. 32™ Street, Bonifacio Global Taguig, City to
consider, discuss or vote on the following ' '

1. Call to order ‘

2. Certification and Notice of Quorum ‘ '

3. Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders Meeting held on May 25, 2012.

4. Report of the President : :

5. Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

6. Election of Directors, including the Independent Directors

7. Election of the External Auditor

8. Declaration of Cash Dividends

9. Consideration of such other business as may properly come before the meeting
y .

b. Adjournment

Any stockholder may vote by proxy provided that such authorization remains unrevoked
and on file with, or is submitted to, the undersigned at the 15/F Sagittarius Building, H.V.
De la Costa Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City. '

For purposes of the meeting, only stockholders of record as of April 30, 2013 shall be
entitled to vote.

The Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately after the
Annual Stockholders’ Meefing.

Thank you.

For the Board of Directors:

<
ANNA-TERESA M. GOZON
Corporate Secrefary

BROGAR



We are not soliciting your proxy. However, if you are unable to attend the mesting but would
like to be represented thereat, you may accomplish the proxy form herein provided below and
submit the same to the Office of the Corporate Secretary on or before May 29, 2013. You may
deliver the proxy or send it in advance through fax no. (632) 812-0008. Validation of proxies
shall be held on May 30, 2013 at 10:00 a.m. at the GMA Network Center.

PROXY

‘I/We hereby name and appoint _ or in his/her absence, the Chairman
of the meeting, as my/our proxy at the Annual Stockholders’ Meetin% of GMA Holdings, Inc. to
be held at Aubergine Restaurant Patisserie 32" and 5" Building, 5" Avenue cor. 32" Street,
Bonifacio Global Taguig, City, on Friday, May 31, 2013 at 10:00 a.m. and at any postponement
or adjournment thereof.

Name

Signature

Date

No. of Shares Heid
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-1S

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Check the appropriate box:

[ ] Preliminary Information Statement

[ v 1Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: PHILIPPINES
SEC identification Number C5200602356 |

BIR Tax Identification Code 244-658-896-000

Address of principal office Posta“l "Code

UNIT 5D TOWER ONE, ONE MCKINLEY PLACE, NEW BONIFACIO GLOBAL CITY,
FORT BONIFACIO, TAGUIG CITY '

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code {632) 9827777

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

DATE : May 31, 2013
TIME : 10:00 a.m.
PLACE: Aubergine Restaurant Patisserie 32™ and 5t Building, 5™ Avenue

cor. 32" Street, Bonifacio Global Taguig, City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders

May 9, 2013

In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor: NOT APPLICABLE -
Address and Telephone No.: NOT APPLICABLE

3



11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and & of
the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to

corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding and Amount of Debt
Qutstanding
Philippine Depositary Receipts (“PDRs”) 857,509,800

12 Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

PDRs/PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE



. GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

This Information Statement dated May 7, 2013, is being furnished to the stockholders of record
of GMA Holdings, Inc. as of April 30, 2013 in connection with the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE
REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

item 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

(a) State the date, time and place of the meeting

Date May 31, 2013
Time 10:00 a.m.
Place: Aubergine Restaurant Patisserie 32™ and 5" Building, 5" Avenue cor.

32™ Street, Bonifacio Global Taguig, City

(b) Approximate date on which capies of the information statement are first to be sent to the
security holders:

May 9, 2013

item 2. Dissenters' Right of Appraisal -

Title X of the Corporation Code of the Philippines grants to a shareholder the right to dissent
and demand payment of the fair value of his share in certain instances, to wit: (1) in case any
amendment to the corporation’s articles of incorporation has the effect of changing and
restricting the rights of any shareholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any
respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class; (2) in case of any sale, lease,
exchange, fransfer, mortgage or other disposition of all or substantially all of the corporate
property or assets; (3) in case of merger or consolidation; (4) in case the corporation decides to
invest its funds in another corporation or business or for any purpose other than the primary
purpose; and (5) extension or shortening of the term of corporate existence.

Under Section 42 of the Corporation Code, a stockholder is likewise given an appraisal right in
cases where a corporation decides to invest its funds in another corporation or business. The
appraisal right may be exercised by a stockholder who shall have voted against any of the
foregoing corporate actions proposed in a meeting by making written demand on the
corporation for the payment of the fair value of hisfits shares within 30 days after the date on
which the vote is taken. Failure to make written demand within such period shall be deemed a
waiver of such right. If the proposed action is implemented, the corporation shall pay 1o a



stockholder surrendering his/its stock certificates the fair value of such shares as of the day
prior to the date on which the vote was taken; however, no payment shall be made to any
stockholder unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such
payment. Within ten days after demanding payment for his shares, a dissenting stockholder
shall submit his stock certificates for notation thereon that such shares are dissenting shares,
failing which, his/its appraisal right shall, at the option of the corporation, terminate. Upon
payment of the purchase price for the shares, the stockholder must transfer his shares to the
corporation.

Erom the time a demand for payment of fair value until either the abandonment of the corporate
action involved or the purchase of said shares by the corporation, all rights accruing to such
shares, including voting and dividend rights, shall be suspended. If the dissenting stockholder is
not paid the value of the shares within 30 days after the award, his voting and dividend rights
shall be restored.

None of the proposed corporate actions qualifies as an instance for a possible exercise by
security holders of their appraisal rights under Title X of the Corporation Code of the
Philippines.

ltem 3. Iinterest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

(a) There is no matter to be acted upon in which any Director or Executive Officer is
involved or had a direct, indirect or substantial interest.

" (b) No Director has informed the Company of his opposition to any matter to be acted upon.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ltem 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

(a) GMA Holdings, Inc. (“the Company”) has 10,000 common shares subscribed and
outstanding as of April 15, 2013. Every stockholder shall be entitled to one vote for
each common share held as of the established record date.

{b) All stockholders of record as of the closing of business on April 30, 2013 are entitled to
nofice of and to vote at the Company’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

(c) With respect to the election of directors, a stockholder may vote such number of shares
for as many persons as there are directers to be elected or he may accumulate said
shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected
or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall
see fit; provided, that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the total
number of shares owned by him multiplied by the whole number of directors to be

elected.

(d) The following are the information on security ownership of certain record and beneficial
owners and management:



Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners as of April 15, 2013

As of April 15, 2013, the following persons owned at least 5% of the Company’s

outstanding common shares:

Title of Name, Address of Name of Citizenship | No.of | Percentage
class Record Owner and | Beneficial Owner Shares of Class
Relationship with | and Relationship Held
Company with Record
Owner
Common | Felipe L. Gozon The Record owner Filipino 3,330 33.30
Unit 5 5D Tower One, | is the Beneficial
One McKinley Place, Owner
New Bonifacio City,
Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City
Common | Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. | The Record owner Filipino 3,330 33.30
Unit 5 5D Tower One, | is the Beneficial
One McKinley Place, Owner
New Bonifacio City,
Fort Bonifacio,
: Taguig City
Common | Joel Marcelo G. The Record owner Filipino 3,330 33.30
Jimenez is the Beneficial
Unit 5 5D Tower One, Owner
One McKinley Place,
New Bonifacio City, -
Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City
Total 9,990 99.90

Felipe L. Gozon, Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. and Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez are significant
stockholders of the Company.

Security Ownership of Management as of April 15, 2013:

As of April 15, 2013, the Company's directors
06,996 common shares of the Company, equivalent to 99.96% of the Com

and outstanding common capital stock.

and senior officers owned an aggregate of
pany’s issued




Title of Class Name of Amount and Citizenship Percentage
Beneficial Owner Nature of of Class
Beneficial
Ownership
Common Felipe L. Gozon Direct Filipino 33.30
3,330
Common Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. Direct Filipino 33.30
3,330
Common Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez Direct Filipino 33.30
3,330
Common Artemio V. Panganiban Direct Filipino .04
4
Common Jaime C. Laya Direct Filipino .01
1
Common Felipe S. Yalong Direct Filipino .01
1
Total 99,996 99.96

Voting Trust Holders of more than 5%

The Company is not aware of any person holding more than 5% of shares under a
voting trust or similar arrangement.

Changes in Control

The Company is not aware of any arrangement which may have resulted in a change in
control of the Company during the period covered by this report. ‘

Foreign Equity

The Company’s equity (consisting of common shares) are wholly-owned by Filipinos.
While the PDRs issued by the Company may be owned by any person regardless of
citizenship or nationality, the exercise of which is subject to the nationality restriction
under the Philippine Constitution prohibiting foreign ownership in mass media
companies. As a result, the Underlying Shares (GMA Network, Inc. common shares)
resulting from an exercise of the PDRs may only be issued to Philippine citizens or
corporations, cooperatives or associations wholly owned and managed by Philippine
citizens. Although holders of PDRs will enjoy economic rights upon occurrence of certain
events in respect of the Underlying Shares, they will not have any voting rights in
respect of the Underlying Shares. Such voting rights will, until exercise of the PDR, be
retained and exercised by GHI or the Company. Pending exercise of the PDRs, the
Shares deliverable on exercise of the PDRs shali be owned by and registered in the
name of the Issuer. The Shares underlying the PDRs have been delivered and pledged
by the Issuer to the Pledge Trustee, and held to the order and for the benefit of the
Holders as security for the delivery of the Shares upon exercise of the PDRs pursuant {o
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the Pledge. Until an exercise of a PDR, the Issuer, as owner of Shares underlying the
relevant PDR, will retain and exercise such voting rights relating to such Shares.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers

Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors

The following were nominated as members of the Board of Directors for the ensuing year
(2012-2013):

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Felipe L. Gozon

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez

Jaime C. Laya (Independent Director)

Artemio V. Panganiban {Independent Director)

All the norinees are incumbent directors. The nominees were formally nominated by Gilberto
R. Duavit, Jr. Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. has no relationship with the nominated independent
directors, Jaime C. Laya and Artemio V. Panganiban.

The Company's By-laws provide that all nominations to the Board of Directors shall be
submitted in writing to the Nomination Committee hefore the date of the regular annual meeting
of the stockholders. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the gqualifications of the
nominees and approved the final list of candidates.

The members of the Nomination Committee are as foliows:
Felipe L. Gozon (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Jaime C. Laya

Board of Directors, Officers and Senior Management

Under the Articies of Incorporation of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company
comprises five directors, two of whom are independent. The directors have a term of one year
and are elected annually at the Company’s stockholders meeting. A director who is elected to
fill a vacancy holds the office only for the unexpired term of his predecessor. As of April 15,
2013, the Company’s Board of Directors and Senior Management were composed of the

following:



Board of Directors Senior Management
Year Year
Directors and Senior . : o Position - Position
Management Nationality Position was Position was Age
Assumed : Assumed
. .. Chairman/
Felipe L. Gozon Filtpino Director 2007 N/A NSA 73
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. Filipino Director 2007 Prasident/Chief Executive Officer 2007 49
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez Filipiro Director 2007 N/A N/A 49
Chief Financial Officer/Chief
Felipe S. Yalong Filipina Corporate Treasurer 2007 Operating Officer 2012 56
Artemio V. Panganiban Filipino independent Director 2008 NIA N/A 16
Jaime C, Laya Filiping independent Director 2008 N/A N/A T4
Ronaldo P, Mastrl Fiipino | NIA N | Gomptrotier/Chief Accounting 2007 a7
Officer
Anna Terese M. Gozon-Abrogar Filipino Corperate Secretary 2007 N/A N/A 41

Felipe L. Gozon

Felipe L. Gozon, Filipino, 73 years old, is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer of GMA Network, Inc.

Atty Gozon is @ Senior Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila.
Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is also Chairman and CEO of GMA Marketing and
Productions, Inc. and GMA New Media, Inc.; Chairman and President of FLG Management and
Development Corp.; Chairman of Alta Productions Group, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing and
Productions, Inc., Mont-Aire Realty and Development Corp. Philippine Entertainment Portal,
inc., and RGMA Network, Inc.; Vice Chairman of Malayan Savings and Mortgage Bank;
Director of, among other companies, Gozon Development Corp., Justitia Realty and
Management Corp., Antipolc Agri-Business and Land Development Corp., Sagittarius
Condominium Corp. and President of Lex Realty, Inc. He serves as Chairman of the Board of
Trustees of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc., Kapwa Ko Mahal Ko Foundation, inc., and The
Potier and Clay Christian School Foundation, Inc. Chairman and President of Gozon
Foundation: and Trustee of Bantayog ng mga Bayani Foundation.

Atty. Gozon is a recipient of several awards for his achievement in law, media, public service,
and business, including the prestigious Chief Justice Special Award given by the Chief Justice
of the Philippines (1991), Presidential Award of Merit given by the Philippine Bar Association
(1990 & 1993), CEO of the Year given by Uno Magazine (2004), Master Entrepreneur —
Philippines (2004) by Ernst and Young, Outstanding Citizen of Malabon Award for Legal and
Business Management by the Kalipunan ng Samahan sa Malabon (KASAMA) (2005), People of
the Year by People Asia Magazine (2005) and Lifetime Achievement Award given by the UP
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Alumni Association (2012). He is also listed among Biz News Asia’s Power 100 (2003 to 2010).
Gozon was also selected as a member of the Advisory Board for the 2010 Asian Television
Awards (ATA).

Atty. Gozon earned his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines {among
the first 10 of his class) and his Master of Laws degree from Yale University Law School. He
was admitted to the Bar in 1962, placing 13th in the Bar examinations.

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Filipino, 49 years old, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of the GMA Network, Inc.
He has been a Director of GMA Network, Inc. since 1999 and is currently the Chairman of the
Network’s Executive Committee. Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is the Chairman of the
Board of GMA Network Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. and Vice Chairman of the Board
of GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. He also serves as President and CEQ of GMA
Holdings, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc., Film Experts, inc., and
Dual Management and investments, inc. He is the President and a Director of Group
Management and Development, Inc.; President and Director of MediaMerge Corp., Citynet
Network Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Director-of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA New Media,
Inc., Alta Productions Group, Inc., Optima Digital, Inc., and Monte-Aire Realty and Development
Corp. He also serves as the President and a Trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.,
President of Guronasyon Foundation, Inc. {formerly LEAF) and is a Trustee of the HERO
Foundation. :

Mr. Duavit holds a Bat:héior’s Degree in Rhij_osophy from the University of the Philippines.

Joel G. Jimenez

Filipino, 49 years old, has been a Director of the GMA Network, Inc. since 2002. He is currently
the Senior Vice President of GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc., and the Chief Executive
Officer of Alta Productions, Inc. He is a Director of RGMA Network, inc., GMA New Media, Inc.,
Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Worldwide, Inc., besides also being a member of the Board of
Directors of Malayan Savings and Mortgage Bank, and Unicapital Securities, Inc. He is also a
Director of Nuvoland Philippines, a real-estate development company. He is a Trustee of GMA
Kapuso Foundation, Inc. '

He was educated in Los Angeles, California where he obtained a Bachelor's Degree in
Business Administration from Loyola Marymount University. He also obtained a Master's
Degree in Management from the Asian Institute of Management.

Felipe S. Yalong

Filipino, 56 years old, is the Executive Vice President and Head of the Corporate Services
Group of GMA Network, Inc. He has been a Director of the Company since 2002. Aside from
GMA Network, Inc., he also serves as Corporate Treasurer of GMA Holdings, Inc., Scenarios,
Inc., and GMA Network Fiims, Inc.; Director of Unicapital, Inc., Majalco Finance and
investments, Inc., and GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Corporate Treasurer of RGMA
Network, Inc., Mediamerge Corp.; Executive Vice President of ‘RGMA Marketing and
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Productions, Inc.. and Corporate Treasurer of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso
Foundation, inc.

He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration Major in Accounting from
the Philippine School of Business Administration and completed the Management Development
Program at the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Jaime C. Laya

Filipino, 73 years old, has been an independent Director of GMA Network, Inc. since 2007. He
is the Chairman of Philippine Trust Company (Philtrust Bank), Director of Philippine Ratings
Services Corporation, Victorias Milling Company, Inc., Philippine AXA Life Insurance Company,
Inc., Ayata Land, inc., and Manila Polo Ciub, Inc. He also serves as Chairman of Don Norberto
Ty Foundation, Inc., CIBI Foundation, inc., and Dual Tech Foundation, Inc.; Trustee of De la
Salle University — Taft, St. Paul University-Quezon City, Cultural Center of the Philippines,
Metropolitan Museum of Manila, Yuchengco Museum and Fundacién Santiago, Inc.

He was Minister of Budget, 1975-1981; Minister of Education, Culture and Sports, 1984-86;
Chairman of the Monetary Board and Governor, Central Bank of the Philippines, 1981-1984;
Chairman, National Commission for Culture and the Arts, 1996-2001. He was faculty member
of the University of the Philippines, 1957-1978 and Dean of the College of Business
Administration, 1969-1974. In 1986, he founded J.C. Laya & Co., Ltd. (Certified Public
Accountants and Management Consultants) later the Philippine member firm of KPMG
International: he served as the firm’s Chairman until his retirement in 2004.

He earned his BSBA, magna cum laude, University of the Philippines, 1957; M.S. in Industrial
Management, Georgia Institute of Technology, 1961; Ph.D. in Financial Management, Stanford
University, 1966. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Artemio V. Panganiban

Filipino, 75 years old, has been an independent Director of GMA Network, Inc. since 2007. In
1995, he was named a Justice of the Supreme Court and in 2005, he was appointed Chief
Justice of the Philippines — a position he held until December 2006. At present, he is also an
Independent Director of these listed firms: First Philippine Holdings Corp., Metro Pacific
Investments Corp., Manila Electric Company, Robinsons -Land Corp., GMA Holdings, Inc.,
Metro Pacific Tollways Corp., Petron Corporation, Bank of the Philippine Islands, and Asian
Terminals. He has been a regular director of Jollibee Foods Corporation since 2012. He Is also
a Senior Adviser of Metropolitan Bank, Independent Adviser of Philippine Long Distance
Telephone Co., Chairman, Board of Advisers of Metrobank Foundation, Chairman of the Board
of Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, Inc., and Member, Advisory Board of the World Bank
and of the Asian Institute of Management Governance Council. He also is a column writer of

The Philippine Daily Inquirer.

Upon his retirement, he was unanimously conferred a Plaque of Acclamation by the Associate
Justices of the Supreme Court as the “Renaissance Jurist of the 21st Century;” and an Award
of Honor by the Philippine Bar Asscciation. In recognition of his role as a jurist, lawyer, civic
leader, Catholic lay worker, business entrepreneur and youth leader, he had been the recipient
of over 250 other awards from various governments, civic clubs, consumer associations, bar
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groups, religious movements and other non-government . organizations, both local and
international.

He obtained his Associate in Arts, “With Highest Honors” and later his Bachelor of Laws, cum
laude and “Most Ouistanding Student” honors from the Far Eastern University. He placed sixth
among more than 4,200 candidates who took the 1960 Bar examinations. He is likewise the
recipient of several honorary doctoral degrees from various universities.

Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar

Filipino, 41 years old, has been a Director of the GMA Network, inc. since 2000. Atty. Anna
 Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar graduated valedictorian from grade school and high school at
‘Colegio San Agustin. She graduated cum laude, BS Management Engineering from Ateneo de
Manila University and obtained her Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the
Philippines where she graduated valedictorian, cum laude. She later obtained her Master of
Laws from Harvard University.

She is a junior partner in Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila and was an Associate
Professor in the University of the Philippines, College of Law where she taught taxation.

She is currently Programming Consultant to the Chairman/CEQ of GMA Network, Inc. and the
President of GMA Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. She is a frustee of GMA Kapuso
Foundation. '

Ronaldo P. Mastrili

Filipino, 47 years old, obtained a Bachelor of Science in Business and Economics degres,
major in Accounting from De La Salle University. He attended Master in Business Administration
Program from the same university and completed the Executive Development Program of the
Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant with expertise in fields of
accounting, auditing, finance and taxation. He was formely the Assistant Vice President of
Controllership of ABS-CBN and also served as the Group internal Auditor before joining GMA
Network, Inc. He also worked with SGV & CO. in the early part of his career. He is currently the
Vice President for Finance of GMA Network, Inc.

Significant Employees

Although the Company will-continue to rely on the individual and collective contributions of their
executive officers, the Company is not dependent on the services of any particular employee.

Family Relationships

Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar is the daughter of Felipe L. Gozon. Felipe L. Gozon’s sister,
Carolina L. Gozon Jimenez, is the mother of Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez.

13-



Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, during the past five years and up to the date of this
Information Statement, there has been no occurrence of any of the following events which are
material fo an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director, person nominated to become
a director, executive officer, or control person of the Company:

s Any filing of an insolvency or bankruptcy petition by or against any business of which
such person was a general partner or executive officer, either at the time of the
insolvency or within two years prior to that time;

s Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, doméstic or foreign, or any
pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, of any such person, excluding traffic
violations and other minor offenses;

e Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, against any such person, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting involvement in any type of business,
securities, commodities, or banking activities; and

¢ Any final and executory judgment of any such person by a domestic or foreign court of
competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC, or comparable foreign body, or a
domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-regulatory organization,
for violation of a securities or commodities law.

Resignation of Directors

No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the
date of the initial organization of the Company because of a disagreement with the Company on
matters relating to the Company's operations, palicies and practices.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

On May 30, 2008, the Company engaged as its legal counsel Belo Gozon Eima Parel Asuncion
& Lucila (“BGEPAL") where Atty. Felipe L. Gozon is a Senior. Partner. Atty. Gozon is the
Chairman and one of the major stockholders of the Company. The Company and BGEPAL are
currently negotiating the fees in relation {o the services provided, ensuring that the same is

done on an arm’s length basis.

On July 30, 2007, the Company issued PDRs relating to GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares.
The proceeds owing to the selling sharsholders of GMA Network, Inc. (“Selling Shareholders”)
whose Common Shares formed the underlying shares of the PDRs in the Company’s Initial
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Public Offering were initially held by the Company then remitted to these Selling Shareholders.
Please see Note 10 of the Company's Financial Statements.

Other than the foregoing, the Company has had no material transactions during the past two
years, nor is any material transaction presently proposed between the Company and parties
that fall outside the definition of “related parties” under SFAS/IAS No. 24, but with whom the
registrants or its related parties have a relationship that enables the parties to negotiate terms
of material transactions that may not be availed from other, more clearly independent parties on
an arm's length basis.

ltem 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The following sets forth the summary of the Company's compensation to its executive officers:

Name and Position

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. President and Chief Executive Officer
Felipe S. Yalong Chief Financial Officer/ Chief Operating Officer
Ronaldo P. Mastrili Chief Accounting Officer/ Comptroller

Year Salaries Bonuses Other Total

{in (in Income (in
thousands) thousands) thousands)

CEOQ and the highest
compensated officers named 2009 - - C- -
above

2010 - - -

2011 - - - -

(estimate)

Aggregate compensation paid
to all officers and directors as 2009 - - -
a group unnamed
2010 - - - -
2011
(estimate)

No director or officer receives or has received compensation for their services. The By-Laws of
the Company however, provides that each director is entitled to a reasonable per diem
allowance for attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors. The By-Laws further
provide that the Board may receive and allocate an amount of not more than 10% of the net
income before income tax of the corporation during the preceding year. Such compensation
shall be determined and apportioned among the directors in such manner as the Board may
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deem proper, subject to the approval of the stockholders representing at least a majority of the
stockholders.

The Company has no other arrangement with regard to the remuneration of its existing
directors and officers aside from the compensation received as herein stated.

Employment Contracts, Termination of Employment, Change-in-control Arrangsments

The directors and executive officers do not have any employment contracts, and are slected to
their respective positions on a yearly basis. The Company has no compensatory plans or
arrangements with respect to any executive officer that would result from the resignation,
retirement or any other termination of such executive officer's employment.

ltem 7. Independent Public Accountants

(a) SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. ("SGV & Co.”) has acted as the Company's external
auditors since 2007. SGV & Co. is being recommended for re-election at the scheduled
Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on May 31, 2013.

(b) Representatives of SGV & Co. for the current year and for the most recently completed
fiscal year are expected to be present at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. They will
have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be
available to respond to appropriate questions.

The Company became publicly listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange on July 30,
2007. Pursuant to Rule 68 paragraph 3 (b) (iv), the Company has engaged Ms. Clairma
T. Mangangey, partner of SGV & Co., to sign the Company's 2012 audited financial
statements.

(c) Changes in and disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure.

The Company has not had any disagreements on accounting and financial disclosures
with its current external auditors during the two most recent fiscal years or any
subsequent interim period.

(d) SGV & Co. professional fees billed for its year-end financial audit of the Company
covering the years 2012 and 2011 amounted to R75,000 per year. These included the
fees related to financial audit and services for general tax compliance. No other fees of
any nature were paid.

(d)} The Company’s Audit Committee was formed in 2008. The Audit Committee reviews the
fee arrangements with the external auditor and recommends the same fo the Board of

Directors.
The members of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Jaime C. Laya {Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.
Artemio V. Panganiban -
Felipe S. Yalong
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ltem 8. Compensation Plans

No action shall be taken with respect to any pian pursuant o which cash or non-cash
compensation may be paid or distributed.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

ltem 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

No action shall be taken with respect to the authorization or issuance of any securities
otherwise than for exchange for outstanding securities of the Company.

ltem 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities
No action shall be taken with respect to the modification of any class of securities of the

Company, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of securities of the.
Company in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.

ltem 11. Financial and Other Information

In connection with Item 11 hereof, the Company has incorporated by reference the following as
contained in the Management Report prepared in accordance with Rule 68 of the Securities

and Regulation Code:

a. Audited Financial Statements for December 31,'2011 and 2010;

b Manégement’s Discussion and Analysis or pian of operation; and
c. Information on business overview, properties, legal proceedings, market price of
securities and dividends paid out, and corporate governance

ltem 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters
No action is to be taken with respect to the mergers, consolidations, acquisitions and similar
matters,
ltern 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action is to be taken with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any property.
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ltem 14. Restatement of Accounts

No action is to be taken with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital or surplus account
of the Company.

D. OTHER MATTERS

ltem 15. Action with Réspect to Reports

a. Approval of the Annual Report of Management and the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ending December 31, 2012.

b. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on May
25, 2012. The salient matters are summarized as follows:

(1) Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders’ Meeting held on May
27, 2011 ‘ .

(2) Report of the President

(3) Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the Previous Year

(4) Election of Directors, including the independent Directors -

(5) Election of the External Auditor

¢. Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

> All acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for

the period covering May 25, 2012 to May 31, 2013 adopted in the

ordinary course of business involving

> Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;

> Appointment of signatories; ‘

> Approval of the minutes of the organizational mesting last May
25,2012

> Appointment of a new Compliance Officer who shall at the same time

hold the designation of Vice-President

> Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual

Stockholders’ Meeting
> Approval of the Financial Statements

ltem 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

All actions or matters to be submitted in the meeting will reguire the vote of the security holders.

ltem 17. Amendmenf of Charter, Bylaws or Other Documents
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No action is to be taken with respect to any amendment of the registrant's charter, by-laws or

other documents.

ltem 18. Other Proposed Action

(a) Ratification of the Acts of the Board of Directors/Corporate Officers:

(i)

(iif)

\Y

Declaration of Cash Dividends of P0.40 per share by GMA Network Inc.
on March 28, 2012 to PDR Holders. The record date for the PDR
holders who were entitled to receive the cash amounts was on April 16,
2012 [the same record date for GMA Network, Inc. stockholders]. The
cash dividend was received by GMA Holdings on May 8, 2012
(Tuesday) and the cash amounts were distributed to the PDR holders
on May 9, 2012 (Wednesday).

Declaration of Special Cash Dividends of P0.26 per share by GMA
Network Inc. on August 1, 2012 to PDR Holders. The record date for
the PDR hoiders who were entitled to receive the cash amounts was on
August 22, 2012 [the same record date for GMA Network, Inc.
stockholders]. The cash dividend was received by GMA Holdings on
September 13, 2012 (Thursday) and the cash amounts were distributed
to the PDR holders on September 14, 2012 (Friday).

All acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for
the period covering May 25, 2012 to May 31, 2013 adopted in the
ordinary course of business involving
Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;
Appointment of signatories;
Approval of the minutes of the organizational meeting last May 25,
2012
Appointment of a new Compliance Officer who shall at the same time
hold the designation of Vice-President
Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting
Approval of the Financial Statements

(b) Election of the Members of the Board of Directors, including two independent
directors for the ensuing calendar year

(c) Election of the External Auditor

Item 19. Voting Procedures

(a) Vote Required: Motions, in general, require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares
of the Company’'s common stock present and/or represented and entitled to vote. However,
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under Philippine law, certain proposed actions may require the vote of at least two thirds’
(2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. The manner of voting is non-
cumulative, except as to the election of directors.

(b) Method: Straight and cumulative voting. In the election of directors, the five (5} nominees
garnering the highest number of votes shall be elected directors. The stockholder may vote
such number of shares for as many person as there are directors to be elected, or he may
cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to.
be elected, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as
he shall see fit; provided, the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number
of shares owned by him multiplied by the number of directors to be elected.

If there are more than five nominees, voting shall be done by secret ballot. If there are only
five nominees, voting shall be done by a show of hands.

The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of the meeting shall be responsible for validating
the votes if the voting is done by secret ballot. The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of
the meeting shall likewise be responsible if the voting is done by a show of hands.

Other than the nominees’ election as directors, no director, executive officer, nominee or
associate of the nominees has any substantial interest, direct or indirect by security holdings or
otherwise in any way of the matters to be taken upon during the meeting. The Company has not
received any information that an officer, director or stockholder intends to oppose any action to
be taken at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

Upon written request of the stockholders, the Company undertakes to furnish said
stockholder with a copy of the SEC Form 17-A free of charge. Any written request for a
copy of the SEC Form 17-A shall be addressed to the following:

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

9/F GMA NETWORK CENTER
EDSA corner Timog Avenue
Diliman, Quezon City

Attention: Ronaldo P. Mastrili
Chief Accounting Officer

The Company also undertakes to provide the first quarter interim financial report (period
ended March 31, 2013) during the annual stockholder’s meeting.

20



' SIGNATURE PAGE
After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my. knowledge and belief, | certify that the

information set forth in this report is true, complete and correct, This report is signed in the

City of Makati on May _7 , 2013

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
By: ‘

. { . B ) et
(%W“ oz G
- ANNA-TERESA M. GOZON ABROGAR

Corporate Secretary
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT

I ~ Business

GMA Holdings, Inc., (the “Company” or “GHI") was incorporated on February 15, 2006. As a
holding Company, its primary purpose is to invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire own, hold,
use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange, or otherwise dispose of real and
personal property, including, but not limited to stocks, bonds and debentures. The Company
has no subsidiaries.

The Philippine Deposit Receipts (“PDRs”) issued by the Company were listed with the
Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE”) on July 30, 2007.

GHI does not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the
PDRs relating to the GMA Network, Inc. common shares (“Common Shares”) for as long as the
PDRs are outstanding. GHI has undertaken to perform the obligations under the PDRs and the
acquisition and holding of the Common Shares underlying the PDRs, which includes
maintaining the listing with the PSE, and maintaining its status as a Philippine person for as
long as Philippine law prohibits ownership of Common Shares by non-Philippine persons.

The registered office address of the Company is Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City.

-

Transactions with/and or dependence on related parties:

Not applicable.

Employees
The Company had no full-time employees as of March 31, 2013 and does not anticipate in
hiring any employees within the next 12 months. No labor unions are present within the
Company.

Il Properties

The Company does not own any real property. The Company does not lease any real property
and does not intend to acquire any within the next 12 months.

-l Legal Proceedings

The Company is not, and has not been, a party to any legal proceeding.
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IV.  Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Market Information

The Company first offered PDRs relating to GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares on July 30,
2007. These PDRs were listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange on the same date.

Stock Prices GMAP
Period in 2012 Highest Closing Lowest Closing
1Q 7.01 6.52
2Q 7.10 6.70
3Q 7.10 6.39
4Q 6.55 6.03

The price information as of the close of the latest practicable trading date, May 7, 2013, was
PhP 9.80.00.

Holders

The total number of shareholders as of April 15, 2013 was seven. The number of shares
subscribed as of April 15, 2013 was 10,000 or P100,000.00. Al the common shareholders of

are listed hereunder:

Name of Shareholder No. of Shares Subscribed Percentage of Ownership
Felipe L. Gozon 3,330 33.30
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. 3,330 33.30
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez 3,330 33.30
Artemio V. Panganiban 4 04
Manuel P. Quiogue 4 .04
Jaime C. Laya 1 .01
Felipe S. Yalong 1 .01

Total 10,000 100.00

Dividend Information

Dividends shall be declared only from the surplus profits of the corporation and shall be payable
at such times and in such amounts as the Board of Directors shall determine, either in cash,
shares or property of the Company, or a combination of the three, as said Board of Directors
shall determine. The declaration of stock dividends, however, is subject 10 the approval of at
least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock. No dividend which will impair the capital of the

Company shall be declared..
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In 2012, the Company declared P259 per share cash dividends amounting to P2.59 million to all
stockholders of record as at May 25, 2012, This was paid on June 8, 2012.

The company has no dividend declaration in 2011.

In 2010, the Company declared P300 per share cash dividends amounting to P3 million to all.
stockholders of record as at May 29, 2010. This was paid on June 4, 2010.

The Company has not and will not engage in any other business or purpose except in reiation
to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying Common Shares for as long as the PDRs

are outstanding.

Any cash dividends distributed in respect of Common Shares underlying the PDRs received by
the Company shall be applied towards its operating expenses then due for the preceding and
current year. A further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year shall be
set aside to mest operating or other expenses for the succeeding year. Amounts remaining in
excess of such requirements shall be distributed pro rata amongst the outstanding PDRs.

Whenever the Company shall receive or become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution in respect of the Common Shares which consists of a free distribution of
Common Shares, the Company shall grant additional PDRs fo holders in respect of such

distributions.

Whenever the Company shall receive or become entitied to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution in securities (other than Common Shares) or in other property (other than cash)
in respect of the Common Shares subject to the PDRs, the Company shall forthwith procure
delivery of such securities or other property pro rata to PDR holders or otherwise fo the order of
the PDR holder, subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations in the Philippines.

There are no restrictions on the Company's ability to pay dividends on common equity.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities

No sale of unregistered or exempt securities of the Company has occurred within the past three
years.

V. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements of the

Company that are incorporated into this information Statement by reference. Such Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine GAAP.
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As discussed in the previous section, the Company has not and will not engage in any other
business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying
GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares for as long as the PDRs are outstanding.

Any cash dividends or other cash distributions distributed in respect of Common Shares
received by the Company (or the Pledge Trustee on its behalf) shall be applied toward the
operating expenses then due (including but not fimited to applicable taxes, fees and
maintenance costs charged by the Philippine Stock Exchange) of the Company (the “Operating
Expenses”) for the current and preceding year (as certified by an independent auditor). A
further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year (as certified by an
independent auditor) {the “Operating Fund”) shall be set aside to meet operating or other
expenses for the succeeding year. Any amount in excess of the aggregate of the Operating
Expenses paid and the Operating Fund for such period (as certified by the independent auditor
of the PDR Issuer) shall be distributed to Holders pro rata on the first Business Day after such
cash dividends are received by the Company.

On August 1, 2012, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.26 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to P223.87 million to all shareholders
of record as at August 22, 2012, These were remitted fo PDR holders on September 14, 2012.

On March 28, 2012, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.40 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to P344.62 million to all shareholders
of record as at April 16, 2012. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 9, 2012.

On March 11, 2011, the Company approved cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.45 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to P387.88 million to all shareholders
of record as at April 8, 2011. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 6, 2011.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Company's key performance indicators are focused on the dividends it receives to meet
PDR holders’ expectations and monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to meet its obligations
with respect to the Company’s current and preceding year’s operation.

Results of Operations of GMA Holdings Inc. for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011 -

The Company posted a pre-tax income of P811 thousand, 16% higher than last year's P702
thousand mainly attributed to lower operating expenses due to lower listing fees. However, net
income after tax decreased to P13 thousand from year-ago net income of P688 thousand on
account of reversal of deferred income tax. On the other hand, revenues continue to decline
from P1.97 million in 2011 to P1.91 million due to lower interest income rates this year in spite
of P222 thousand exercise fees arising from conversion of 4,451,200 PDRs to common shares

in 2012.

The company distributed P344.62 million or P0.40 per share on May 8, 2012 and P223.87
million or P0.26 per share on September 14, 2012 in relation to dividends received from GMA

Network, Inc. |
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Operatihg expenses in 2012 decreased to P1.10 million versus P1.27 million last year as a
direct result of lower listing fees which went down by P135 thousand to P560 thousand brought
about by lower market cap.

Financial Condition. Cash in bank and cash equivalents of P48.06 million decreased by F’2
million due to payment of cash dividends to stockholders of P2.59 million versus none in 2011.

KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

Trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have & material
impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

As of December 31, 2012, there were no known trends, demands, commitments,
events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the issuer's liquidity.

Events that will frigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the

company, including any default or acceleration or an obligation.

As of December 31, 2012, there were no events which may trigger a direct or
contingent financial obligation that is material to the Company.

Material off-balance sheet ~transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

There were no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such
commitments and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

For 2012, there were no material commitments for capital expenditures.

Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net
sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

The Company's results of operations depend largely on its ability to meet PDR
holders’ expectations from the dividends it receives and to monitor cash and cash
equivalents levels to mest its obligations with respect to the Company’s current and
preceding year's operation. There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that
are reasonably expected to have a material favorabie or unfavorable impact on net
sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.
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vi. Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company's
continuing operations.

As of December 31, 2012, there were no significant elements of income or loss that
did not arise from the issuer’s continuing operations.

vii. Causes for Material Changes in the Financial Statements

Balance Sheet (December 31, 2012 vs. December 31, 2010}

» Cash in bank and cash equivaients of P48.06 million decreased by P2 million
due to payment of cash dividends to stockholders of P2.59 million versus none in
2011.

s Accounts payable and accrued expenses of P483 thousand increased by
P481 thousand due to unbilled professional fees for corporate housekeeping.

viil. Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operations.

There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition
or results of operations.

INTERIM PERIODS

The Company currently cannot make available the financial information for the first quarter of
2013. The Company however, undertakes to submit its SEC Form 17-Q before May 15, 2013
and to make the same available upon request during the Company’s Annual Stockholders’

Meeting.

Vi Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors has established a set of policies and initiatives to ensure that GMA
Holding's business practices are compliant with the best praciices in corporate governance.
On March 31, 2011, a Manual on Corporate Governance was submitted to the Securities and
Exchange Commission in compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular 6, Series of 2009.

The Manual sets out the principles of good management and defines the specific
responsibilities of the Board, the Board Committees, and Management within the over-all
governance framework.

The Manual conforms to the requirements of the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission and covers policies, among others:

(a) independent directors, (b) key board committees (e.g. Executive Committee, Nomination
Committee, Audit Committee, Compensation and Remuneration Committee); (c) independent
auditors, (d) internal audit, (e) disclosure system of company's governance policies, (f)
stockholder rights, (g) monitoring and assessment, and (h) penalties for non-compliance.
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On November 6, 2012, the Board designated a Compliance Officer, Atty. Roberto O. Parel, who
at the same time holds the designation of Vice-President. The Compliance Officer is
responsible for monitoring compliance by the Company with the provisions and requirements of
good corporate governance.

Based on the certification of compliance with the Company’s Manual dated January 8, 2013
there have been no deviations from the Company’s Manual as of date.

VIl. Financial Statements
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New Bonifacio Gtobal City | R 10203 3 SDS
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City  RECEIVED
ERWIN L., TELAN

Report on the Financial Btatemenis

We have audited the acoompanying financial statements of GMA Holdings, Inc., which comprise the
staternents of financial position as at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the statements of _
comprehensive income; statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for sach of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

Managament's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation end fair presentation of these finencial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for suclt internal contral as
management determines is necsssary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditars® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express ail opinion on thess financial statements based on our audits, We
conductsd our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Anditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the fmancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An eudit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures

in the financia) statements. The procedures seiected depend on the guditor’s judgment, including the
aasessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financia! statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internat control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentetion of the financial statoments in order o design audit procedures that are.

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the gffectivenass
ncludes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
ent, as well as

of the entity’s internal control. An auditalso i
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by managem

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we hiave obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

pur audit gpinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial stafements present fairly, in ali material respects, the financial position
of GMA Hoidings, Ine. as at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012 in accordance with Philippine

Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on the Supplementary Information Reqguired Under Revenue Regulations 19-2011
and 15-2019

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplementery information required under Revenue Regulations 19-2011

and 15-2010 in Note 15 to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau
of Internal Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such infermation is
the responsibility of the managsment of GMA Hboldings; Inc. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in our sudit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in 811 material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements talen

as whale.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYOC & CO.

Clairma T. Mangangey
Pariner
CPA Certificate No. 86898
SEC Accreditation No. 0779-AR-1 (Group A),
February 2, 2012, valid until February 1, 2015
Tax Identification No. 125-434-867
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-67-2012,
April 11, 2012, valid until April 10,2013
PTR No. 3669697, January 2, 2013, Makati City

March 21, 2013
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC. . : S berrre mibeeie iy Y
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION R APR 11 2013
_ ' E} | 1D
‘“ “;Ncrﬂ' 3 " # /
o A
December bl i
2012 - N 2011
ASSETS
Current Assets :
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6, 12 and 13} 248,061,353 £50,059,007
Accounts receivable (Notes 12 and 13) 253,432 204,339
Prepaid fax ‘ 109,106 43,263
Total Current Assets \ 48,424,091 50,306,609
Nopenrrent Asset ,
Deferred tax assets (Note 10) ' - 456,200

P48, 424,091 50,762,208

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other curtent liabilities
(Notes 7, 12 and 13 R483,073 P241,032
Due to sharsholders (Notes 11, 12 and 13) 47,271,608 47,271,600
Total Current Liabilities 47,754,673 47,512,632
Loquity ‘
Capital stock - 100,000 100,000
Retained sarnings (Note 8) - 569,418 4,150,276
Total Equity 669,418 3,250,276

 pag424,091  P50,762.908

Tee qoeompantying Notes (o Financial Statements.

BUREAU OF tNTERNAL REVENUE
LARGE TAXPAYERS SERVICE
LARCGE TAXFAYERS A38 )ANCE DIVISHON |

v
Date; APR 10 2083 5 SB35

RECEIVED
 ERWIN L. TELAN
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCGME

Venrs Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
REVENUL .
Interest income (Note &) 1,686,795 P1,068,591 2,681,564
Exercise fees (Note 5) ‘ 222,560 - 1,083,050
‘ 1,909,355 1 568,591 3,764,614
EXPENSES ‘
Operating expenses {Note 9 1,097,954 1,266,393 1,264,866
Interest expense and bank charges \ - 300 182
_ " 1,897,954 1,266,693 1,265,148
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 811,401 701,856 2,499,466
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME
TAX (Note 10) ‘
Current 341,963 303,718 557,873
Deferred 456,299 {380,009) {76,250}
798,262 13,708 481,683
NET INCOME 13,139 688,187  2.017.783
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE NCOME - - -
TOTAL COMPREBENSIVE NCOME 213,132 B6RE,187 22,017,783
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (Nate 14) 21,31 5882 p201.78

See cceampaitying Notes to Finanetal Stetements,

BUREAU OF INTENNAL REVENUE
LARGE TANPAYENRS BERVICE
LARGE TAMPAVERS ABSISTANCE DIVISION |

v
Pate} AFR 10 2013 J:;SE}S

RECEIVED
ERWIN L. TELAN
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Retained

Capital Earnings Total

Stock " (Note 8) Rquity

Balances at January 1, 2012 2100,000 23,150,276 23,250,276
Total comprehengive income - - 13,139 13,139
Cash gividends - B259 a ghare — (2,593,997) (2,393,997
Belances at December 31, 2012 £100,000 B562 418 Pr6S,418
Balances at January 1, 2011 £100,000 2,462,089 2,562,089
Total comprehensive income - 688,187 6RE,187
Balances at December 31, 2011 £100,000 83,150,276 23,250,276
Belances at January 1, 2010 £100,000 83,444,306 3,544,306
Total comprehensive income - 2,017,783 2,017,783
‘Cash dividends - 300 & share - — (3,000,000) £3,000,0003}
Belances at December 31, 2010 2100000 27 462,088 - B2 562,089

See pcoompanying Notes fo Fi inancial Staternants.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax 511,401 ‘B701,896 22,499,466
Adjustments for: .

Tnterest income (Note §) (1,686,795)  (1.968.381) (2,681,564}

Interest expenge and bank charges - 300 182
Operating logs before waorking capital changes (875,394) (1,266,385} (181,918)
Decreases (ingreases) in: ‘ : ‘

Accounts receivable {96,560) (126,000) 11,950

Prepaid tax {65,843) (30,42%) (12,834)
Increases (decraases) in:

Accounts payeble and other current liabilities 242,041 (27,599,100) 37,474,359

Due to sharsholders - —  (34,095,827)
Net cash flows used in operations (795,756) (29,021 ,824) (6,804,268}
Interest received 1,734,262 1,084,883 2,863,965
Income texes paid (341,563} (393,718} (601,654)
Interest paid — (300} {182}
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 596,343 (27,431,04%9) (4,540,13%)
CASH TLOW FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY
Payment of cash dividends (Note §) (2,593,997} - (3,000,000
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (1,997,454) (27,431,049} (7,540,135}
CASH AND CASH EGUIVALENTS :

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 50,059,007 77,490,056 85,030,105
CASH AND CABH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR ‘ 248,001,553 250,059,007 277,490,056

See aocompanying Notes to Fi innncinl Statements.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

GMA Heldings, Inc. (the Company) is incorporated in the Philippines to invest in, purchase or
otherwise acquire and own, hold, use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange or
otherwise dispose real and personal property of svery kind and deseription. The registered office
address of the Company is Unit 5D Tower Oae, One MeKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City,

Fort Benifacio, Taguig City. The Company was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission {SEC) on February 15, 2006. :

The accounting and administrative functions of the Company are undertaken by GMA Netwarls,
Ine. (GMA), an affiliate, ' :

Tn 2007, the Company issued Phijlippine Deposit Receipts (PDRs), which wers listed and traded in
the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) (see Nate 5). '

The Company will not engage in any business ar purpose other than in connection with the
issuanee of the PDRs, the performance of the obligations under the PDRs and the acquisition and
holding of the underlying shares of GMA in respect of the PDRs issued. This includes :
maintaining the Company’s listing with the PSE and maintaining its status as a Philippine person
for as long as the Philippine law prohibits ownership of GMA’s shares by non-Philippine person.

No reportable segment information is presented as the Company’s limited operations are
adequately presented in the statements of comprehensive income.

The sceampanying financial staterenis of the Company were approvedr and authorized for
issuance in accordance with a resclution of the Board of Directors (BOD) on March 21, 2013,

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

Basis of Preparation _
The sccompanying financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with

Puilippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

The accompanying financial statements of the Cdmﬁany have been prepared on & historical cost
basis and are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
carrency under PFRS. All values are rounded o the nearest Philippine pese, except when

otherwise indicated.

Chanaes ir. Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for

the following amended PFRS and PAS which were adopted starting Janvary 1, 20 12:

o PFRS 7, Financial nstrumeitis: Disclosures - Trangfers af F inancinl Assets (Amendment},
effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1,2011. ,

» PAS 12, Income Taxes - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underiying Assets (Ameodment),
effective for annual periods beginning January 1,2012.



.

The changas introduced by such amendments and improvements ars ag Tollows;

o PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Transfers of F frametal Assets {Amendment), the
amendments require additional disclosure about financia!l assets that have been transferred but
nat derscognized to enable the user of the Company’s financial statements to understand the
relationship between the assets that have not been derecognized and their associated liabilities.
In addition, the emendments require disclosures about continuing invotlvement in
derecognized assets to gnable the user to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, the

entity’s continuing invelvement in those derecognized assets.

s PAS 12, Income Texes - Deferved Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets {Amendment), the
smendments clarifisd the determination of deferred income tex on investment property
measured at fair value. The amendments introduced a rebuttable presumption that deferred
income tax on investment property measured using the fair value model in PAS 40, Imvestment
Property, should be determined on the hagis that ifs carrying amount will be recavered threugh
sale, Furthermors, the amendment introduces the requirement that deferred income tax on
depreciable assets measured the revajuation model in PAS 16, Property, Plant mid Equipment,
always be measured on a sale basis of the assel.

The adoption of the above amendments to PFRS and PAS did not have a significant impact on the
financial statements.

Future Changes in Accounting Policies :
The Company did not early adopt the following standards and Philippine Interpretations that have
been approved but are not yet effective, The Campany intends to adopt these standards when

these become effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Company does not expect the adoption
of these revised standards, interpretations and amendments to PFRS to have a significant impact

on its financial statements.

Effective in 2013

s PFRS 7, Financial nstruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after Janvary 1, 2013, The
amendments require an entity to diselose information gbout rights of offset and reiated
arrangements (such as collateral pgreements). The new disclosures are required for all
recognized financial instruments that are offest in accordance with PAS 32, Financial
Instruments: Presentation. These disclosures also apply to recognized financial instruments
that are subject to an enforceable master nefting arrangement or “similar agreement”,
irrespective of whether they are set-ofF in accordance with PAS 32, The amendments require’
entities to disclose, in atabular format unless another format is more appropriate, the
following minimum quantitative information. This is presented separately for financial assets
and financial lizbilitiss recognized at the end of the reporting period: '

e, The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities;
b, The amounts that are set-off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when datermining

the net amounts presented in the statement of financial pesition; ‘ :
c. The net amounts presentad in the statement of financial position;

R R R
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d. The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that are not otherwise included in (b) above, including: -
i} Amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not mest some or all of
the offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and
i) Amounts related to financiat collateral (including cash pollateral); and
e. The net amount after deducting the amournts i (d) from the amounts in (c) abovs.

T_he smendments to PFRS 7 are to be applied retrospectively. The amendment affects
disclosures only and has no impact on the Comparmy’s financial position or performance.

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statemsents, becomes effective for annual pericds beginning
on or after January 1, 2013, PFRS 10 replaces the portion of PAS 27, Cansolidated and
Separate Financial Statements, that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial
staternents. It also includes the issves raised in Philippine Interpretation Stending
Interpretations Committee (SICY12, Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. PFRS 10
ostablishes a single contro} model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities.
The changes introduced by PFRS 10 will require management to excrcise significant judgment
to determine which entities are controlled, and thersfore, are requirad 10 be congolideted by a

parent, compared with the requirements that were in PAS 27.

PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements replaces PAS 31, Interests in Jaint Ventures, and Philippine
Interpretation SIC 13, Jointly Controlled Eniities — Non-manetary Contributions by Venturers,
become effective for annuel periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, The new standard
focuses an the nature of the rights and obligations arising from the arrangement. It removes
the option to account for jointly controlled entities (JCEs) using preportionate consolidation.

[nstsad, JCEs that meet the definition of & joint venture must tie accounted for using the equity
method. '

PFRS 12, Disclosure of interesis in Other Entities, becomes effective for annual pericds
beginning on or after January 1, 2013. This standard includes all of the disclosures that were
previously in PAS 27 related to consolidated fnancial statements, as well as all of the
disclosures that were previausly included in PAS 31 and PAS 28, Ivestments in Associalés.

These disclosures relate to an entity’s intevests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, assooiates
and structured entities. A number of new disclosures are alsg required.

PERS 13, Fair Value Measurement, becomes effective for annual periods beginning on of
after January 1, 7013, This standard establishes a single source of guidance under PERS for
all fair value measurements. DFRS 13 doss not change when an eniity {5 required to use fair
yalue, but rather provides guidance on how 10 Measure fair value under PFRS when fair value
is required or permitted. This standard should be applied prospectively as of the beginning of
the annva} period fn which it is initially applied, lts disclosure requirsments need not be

applied in comparative information provided for periads before initial epplication of PFRS 13,

PAS 19, Employee Benefls {Revizsed}, becomes effective for annual periods beginning on of
after January 1, 2013, Amendments td PAS 15 range from fundamental changes such as
removing the corridor mechanism and the concept of expected returns on plan assets {0 simple
clarifications and rewording. The revised standard also requires new disciosures such as,
among others, a sensitivity analysis for sach significant actuarial assumptiorn, information on
asset-liability matehing strategies, duration of the defined benefit obligation, and
disaggregation of plan assets by nature and risk.
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s PAS 27, Separate Financiol Stienents (as revised in 20117, becomes effective for annual
pericds beginning on or after January 1,2013. As a conzequence of the new PFRS 10 and
PFRS 12, what remains of PAS 27 {s limited to aceounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities, and associates in separaie financial statements.

o PAS 28, Ivestments in Associales and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011}, becomes affective
for annuzl periods beginning on or after Tanuary 1, 2013, As a consequence of the new
PFRS 11 and PFRS 12, PAS 28 has been renamed PAS 28, Drvestments in Associaies and
Joint Ventures, and deseribes the application of the equity methed to investments in joint
ventures in addition to associates, :

» PAS 1, Presentation gf Financial Statements - Presentation of Items af Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI), becomes effective for annual perieds beginning on or-after July 1, 2012, The
amendments to PAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in OCI, Items that could be
reclassified (or ‘recycied”) to profit or loss ata future point in time (for example, upan
derscognition or settlement) would be presented separatsty from items that will never be
reclassified. :

s Philippine [nterpretation IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Suiface
Mire, becomes effective for annual periods beginoing on or after January 1, 2013, This
interpretation applies to waste remavel costs (“stripping costs”) that are incurred in surface
mining activity during the praduction phase of the mine (“production siripping costs™), If the
benefit from the stripping activity will be cenlized in the current period, an entity is required o
account for the stripping activity cosis as part of the cost of invemtory. When the benefit is the
improved access to ore, the entity shouid recognize these costs as a nion-current asset, only if
certain criteria are met (“siripping activity asset”). The stripping activity assst is accounted
for ag n addition to, or as an enhencement of, an existing esset, After initial recognition, the
stripping activity asset is carried at its cost ar revalued amount less depreciation or
amortization and less impairment losses, in the same way as the existing asset of which itis a

part.

Arnmual Improvementis io PFRS (2009-2011 cycle). The Annual Improvements to PFRS {2008~
2011 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary amendments t0 PFRS. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 and are apolied retrospectively,
Earlier application is permitted. The Company will adopt these improvements to PFRS when
these become effective.

e PFRS 1, Firsi-time Adoption of PFRS, clarifies that an entity that has stopped applying PFRS
may choose to either: (&) re-apply PFRS 1, even if the entity applied PFRS 1 ina previous
reporting period; or {b) apply PERS retrospectively in accordance with PAS 8, dccounting
Policies, Chenges in Accovmting Estimates and Errors, in order to resume reparting under
FFRS. It also clarifies that upon adoption of PFRS, an entity that capitalized borrowing costs
in accordance with its previous generally accepted sccounting principles may carryforward,
without adjustment, the amount previously capitalized in its opening statement of financial
position at the date of transition. Such borrowing costs are then recognized in accordance:
with PAS 23, Borrawing Costs. The amendment will have no impact on the Company’s

financial position or performance.

¢ PAS |, Presentation of ¥ inancial Stedements — Clarification of the Requirements for
Comparative Information, requires an entity to present a: {4) comparative information in the
~related notes to the fnancial siatements when it voluntarily provides comparative informatian
beyond the minimum required comparative period; and (b) opening statement of financial
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position when an entity changes its accounting policies, makes refrospective restaiements or
makes reclassifications, and that change has a matearial effect on the statement.of financial
position. The opening staternent will be at the beginning of the preceding period. The
amendment has no impact on the Company’s financial position or performance.

» PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment — Classification of Servicing Equipment, clarifies that
major spare parts and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property and eguipment
are not inventory. The amendment has no impact on the Company’s financial position or
performance. '

s PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation ~ Tex Effect of Distribution fo Halders of Equity
Jnstraments, removes existing income tax requirements from PAS 32 and requires entities 1o
apply requirements in PAS 12, Income Taxes, to any income tax arising from distributions to
squity holders, The amendment will have no impact on the Company’s financial position or
performance. ‘

s PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting and Segment Information for Total Assets and
Liabilities, clerifies that the requirements in PAS 34 relating to segment information for total
assets and linbilittes for each reportable segment to enhance consistency with the requirement
in PFRS 8, Operaiing Segments. The amendment will have no impact on the Company’s
financial position or perfarmance

Effective in 2014

o PFRS 10, Consolidared Financial Statements — Frvestment Entities {(Amendment), becomes
effective for annual pericds beginning on of after January 1, 2014, The amendment requires 4
parent that is an investment entity to measure its investments in particular subsidiaries at fair
vaiue through prafit or loss instead of consolidating them. New disciosure requirements
relating to investment entities wers added in PFRS 12 and PAS 27, The amendment will have

no impact on the Company’s financial position or performance.

» PFRE 12, Disclosure of lnteresis in Other Entities — Firvestment Entitias {Amendment},
‘becomes effective for annual periods beginning on of after January 1, 2014, The amendments
require a parent that is an investment entity to disclose information about significant
judgements and assumptions made in determining that it is an investment entity, as well as and
any changes thereto, A parent that is an investment entity is also required to disclose certain
information on unconsolidated subsidiaries, which are accounted for at fair value through
profit or loss. The amendment will have no impact on the Company’s financial position or

performance.

o PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements — Brvestment Entities, becomes effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, The amendments require a parent that is an
investment entity and does not consolidate its subsidiaries in accordance with the exceptions
of PFRS 10, to present a separate financial statement as its only financial statement, The
amendment will have no impact on the Comparny’s financial position or performence.

s PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Lighilities {Amendments). The amendments to PAS 32 ars to be applied_remspectively for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, These pmendments to PAS 32 clarify
the meaning of “currently has 2 legatly enforceable right to offset” and aiso clarify the
application of the PAS 32 ofsetting oriteria to settlerent systems (such as centrel clearing

hiouse systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not simulianeous. While
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the amendment is expected not to have any impact on the net assets of the Company, any
changes in offsetting is expected to impact isverage ratios and regulatory capital requirements.

Effective in 2015

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement, becomes effsctive for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1,2015. PFRS 9 reflects the first phase af the work on the
replacement of PAS 35, Fiaancial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. Work on
tmpairment of financial instruments and hedge accounting is still ongeing, with a view to
repiacing PAS 39 in its entirety, PFRS 9 requires all financial assets to be measured at fair value
at initial recognition, A debt financial asset may, if the fair value optien (FVO) is not invoked, be
subsequently measured af amortized cost if it is held within & business model that has the objective
to hold the assets to colleet the coniractual cash flows and its confractual terms give rise, on
specified dates, to cash flows that are sclely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding. All other debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
ioss. All equity financial assets are measured at fair value either through other comprehensive
income (OCT) or profit or losa, Equity Fnanciel assets held for trading must bs measured at fair
yalue through profit or less. For FVO linbilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a '
lizbility that is ettributable to changes in credit risk must be presented in OCI. The remainder of
the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change
in respect of the liability’s eredit risk in OCI would creats or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. All other PAS 39 classification and measursment requirements for financial
Liabilities have been carried forward into PFRS %, including the embedded derivative separation

rules and the criteria for using the FVC.

The Company does not expect these changes and amendments fo have & materia] impact on its
financial statements. Additional disclosures which may be required by these amendments will be
included in the Company’s financial statements when thess amendments are adopted.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents -
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cashi on hand and in banks and short-term depesits with

maturities of three (3) months or less.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial assets within the scope of PAS 15 are classified
a5 Financial assets at fair value through profit or foss (FVPL), loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Company determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition,

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at FVPL.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the rads
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. :

The Compeny's financial assets include cash and cash squivalents and accounts receivable.
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As at December 31,2012 and 2011, the Company does not have any financial asset at FYPL,
HTM investments, AFS financial assets and derivatives designated as hedging instruments.

“Deay 17 Prafit or Loss, Where the transaction price is different from the fair value of other
observabls current market ransactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables inchude only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference
betwesn the transaction price and fair value of the financial instruments (a “Day 17 profit or loss)
in profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where dafa
which is not observable is used, the difference between the transaction price and model value is
only recognized in profit or joss when the inputs become abservabie or when the instrument is
derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of
recognizing the “Day 17 prefit or loss amount. :

Subsequent Measurement. Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that-are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less impairment. Amortized cost is ealoulated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest amortization is inchided in interest income in profit or loss. The losses arfsing from
impairment are recognized in profit or loss in interest expense for logns.and in other operating
sxpenses for receivables.

Derecognition of Financial dssets. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a partof & financial
asset or part of & group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

« The rights to receive cash flows from the esset have expired; or

» The Company has transferred its rights 1o reczive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in fuli without material delay to a third party under a

“nass-through” arrangement; or

e  Either (a)the Company has.wansferred substaﬁtiall}! all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Company has neither iransferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewerds of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or fias entered
into & pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither sransferred nor retained substantiaily all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of
the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an
associated liability.” The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantes over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay. -

Impairment of Financial Assets. The Company assesses, at sach reporting period, whether thers is
any objactive evidence that a financia! asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, these is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset {an incurred “loss event”) end that loss event has an impact on the

sstimeted future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
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reliably estimatad. BEvidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or & group of
debtars is experiencing significant financtal difficulty, default or delinguency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorgenization and when observable data indicate that thers is a measurable decrease in the
astimated future cash flows, such es changes i arrears or economic conditions that coreslate with

defaults.

Fiameial Assets Cenried ai Amortized Cost. For financial asseis carried at amortized cost, the
Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. 1f the Company determines that no chjective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group af
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collactively assesses them for
impairment. Financial assets that are individuaily assessed for impairment and for whichan
impaeirment {oss is, or continues to be, recognized are not inclided in a collective assessment of
impairment. If there is objective evidence that an impafrment loss has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of eetimated Tuture cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not
yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
Financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If a foan has s variahle interest rate, the discount
cate for measuring any impaiment Joss is the current effective intersst rate. o

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss iz recognized in profit ar loss. Interest income continues ta be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is aceruad using the rate of imerest used to discount the future cash
figws for the purpose of measuring ths impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of
interest income in profit or loss, Loans together with the associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospeet of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has
been transferred o the Company. If; in a subseguent year, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event oceurring after the impajrment was
recognized, the previausly recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a future wiite-off is later recaverad, the recovery is credited to intarest

expense in profit or loss,

Financisl Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial liabilities within the scope of PAS 39 are
clasgified as financial liabilities at FVPL, loens and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Company dsterminss the
classification of iis financial limbilities at initial recognition, .

All financial lighilities are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of loans and
barrowings, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liahilities include accounts payable and other current liabilities
(excluding wititholding tax payable) and due to chareholders. '

As af December 31, 2012 and 201 1, the Company does not have any financial liabilities at FYPL
or derivatives designated as hedging instruments.

TR R



-9.

Subseguent Measurement. After initizl recogpition, interest-bearing Joans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Geins and losses are
{ecognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derscognized as well as through the effective
interest rate amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculdted by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the oFfactive inferest rate. The effective interest rate
amortization is included in interest expense in profit or loss. ‘

Derecagnition of F. inemcial Liahilities. A financial Hability is derecognized when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an axisting liability are substantizlly maodified, such an exchange ar
modification is treated as the derscognition of the ariginal liability and the recognition of a new
ligbility. The difference in the respective carrying amounts s recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting of Fipancial Insfruments :

Financial essets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statements
of financial position if, and only if, therz is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts; and there \s an jntention to settle on & net basis, or'to renlize the assets and
sattls the liahilities simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements,
therefore, the related asseis and tiabilities are presented at gross in the statements of financial

position.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair vaiue of financial instruments that are fraded in active marksts at gach reporting period i3
determined by reference {0 quoted merket pricss o dealer price quotations (bid price for long
positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction cOsts. When
current bid and ask prices are not available, the price of the most recent ransaction provides
evidence of the current fair value as fong as there has not been a significant change in economic

circumstances since the time of the transaction,

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques may include:

s Using recent arm’s-length market transaotimné;
e Reference to the current fair yalue of another instrument that 1§ substantially the same; oF

s A dizcounted cash flow anelysis or other valustion modsls.

Eguity ' . '
Capital stock 18 measured at par value for all sharss issued. Incrementsl costs incurred directly

attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as g deductian from proceeds, net of
tax, Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excass of par value are recognized 43

additional paid-in capital.

Earnings_per share ‘ ‘
. Basic earnings per share (EPS) amounts are caloulated by dividing net incame for the year by the
weighted average number of ordinary sharss outstanding during the year. The Company has 0o

dilutive potential common shares outstanding, therefore, basic EPS is the same as dituted EPS.
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Revenues

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the sconomic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking
into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Company
assesses its revenue arrangements ageinst specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as

principal or agent.

Tnterast ncame, Revenus is recognized ag the interest accrues, taking into account the sffective
yield on the asset. :

Exercise Fees. Revenue is recognized upon conversion of PDRs to common shares.

Fxpsnses _
Expenses presented as “Operating expenses” in the statements of comprehensive income are

recognized as incurred.

Taxes

Current Income Tax, Current income tex assets and liabilities for the current period are measured
at the amount expested to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and
+ax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted at

reporting period.

Current income tax relaiing to items recognized dirgctly in squity is recognized in equity and not
in profit or loss, Menagement periodically evaluates positions taken in the fax returns with respect
+o situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and estabiishes
provisions whers appropriate. :

Deferred Income Tax. Deferrad income tax is provided, using the lability method on temporary
differences at reporting period between the tax bases of assets and izbilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting period.

Defarred tax assets are recognized for nll deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits
of excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) and unused net operating loss carTyover
(NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carryforward benefits of excess MCIT and unused
NOLCO can be-utilized, except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deduetible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset ar ligbility in a transaction that isnota
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects nefther the accounting profit nor

taxable profit,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting period end reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probabie that future taxable

profit will allow the defarred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where ;he
deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill of an asset or liability n a
transaciion that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit.
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“Deferred tax assels and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realized or the lisbility is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws to he
enacted or substantiaily enacted at the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are offset, if'a legally enforceable right exists to offeet current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation euthority.

Income tax relating to other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive incomse
section of the statements of comprehensive income. '

Valie-added Tax (VAT). Revenue; expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT,

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is inciuded as part
of “Prepaid tax” or “Accounts payable and other current liabilities” accounts in the staternents of

financial position.

Provisions ‘

Pravisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or consfructive) Bs a
result of a past event; it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and & reliable estimate can be made aof the amount of the
obligation. Where the Company expects 2 provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virmally certain.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements, These are disclosed in the

notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an autflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote. Contingent asssts are not recegnized in the financial statements but
are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable,

Gvents after Reporting Period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at'the

reporting period (adjusting evenis} are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events
that are not adjusting evenis are disciosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

Summary of Significant Accounting Judgment, Watimates and Assumptions

The preparation of Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgment,
estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the financial statements and related
notes af the end of the reporting period, However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require & material adjustment to the carrying amount of the

asset or Hability affected in future periods.

Judgment ‘ ‘
in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made judgment

an {ts functional currency, which has the most significant effact on the amounts recagnized in the
financial statements.

Fynctional Currency, The Company has determined that its functionel currency is the Philipp‘me
peso, It is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates,
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Estimates and Assumptions : ‘

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation unecertainty at the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of ceusing & material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Company based its assumptions gand estimstes on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared, Existing circumsiances and assumptions about future developments,

however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control ofthe
Company, Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

Estimating Realizability af Deferred Ty Assels. The Compeny’s assessment on the recognition of
deferred tax assets on nondeductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of NOLCO
and sxcess MCIT is based on the forecasted taxable income in the subsequent periods. This
forecast is based on the Company’s future sxpectations on revenue and expenses. ‘

tn 2012, the Company mads a reassessment oa the realizability of the deferred tax assets. Based
on the Company’s judgment, taxable income in the future periods may not be sufficient against
which the deductible temporary difference and carryforward benefits of MCIT and NOLCO, -
respectively, can be utilized, '

The Company did not recognize deferred tax asseis amounting to R0.72 million as at
December 31, 2012. Recognized deferred tax assets as at Dscember 31, 2011 amounted 0
20 46 million (see Note 10). :

Fair Valve of Financial Assets and Liabilities. The Company carries certain financial assets and
liabilities at fair value, which requires the use of accounting estimates and judgment. The
stgnificant compenents of fair value measurement were determined using verifiable objective
gvidence {1.e., intersst rates). However, the timing and amount of changes in fair value would
differ if the Company utilized different valuation methodotogies and assumptions. Any changes
in the fair value of these financial asssts and liabilities would affect the reported fair valus of these

The fair values of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are discussed in Note 12.

Philippine Deposit Receipts

On July 30, 2007, the Compeny issued 822,115,000 PDRs relating to 822,1 15,000 GMA shares, -
On August 21, 2007, additional 123,317,000 PDRs were issued relating to 123,317,000 GMA
shares. Each PDR was issued for a total consideration of £8.50.

Eech PDR grants the holders, upon payment of the exercise price and subject 10 certain other
conditions, the delivery of one {1) GMA share or the sale of and delivery of the proceeds of such
sale of one (1) GMA share. The Company remains to be the registered owner of the GMA shares
covered by the PDRs, The Company also retains the voting rights over the GMA shares.

The GMA sheres are still subject to ownership restrictions on shares of corporations engaged in
mese media and GMA may reject the transfer of shares to persons other than Philippine nationals.
The PDRs were listed in the PSE on July 30, 2007, and the same may be exercised at any fime

. from said date. Any cash dividends or other cash distributions in respect of GMA shares recsived
by the Company shall be applied toward the operating expenses of the Company for the current
and preceding years: A further amount equal to the epsrating expenses in the preceding year ghall
he set aside to meet operating or other expenses for the succeeding years, Any amount In EXCEss
of the aggregate of the operating expenses paid and the operating fund for such period shall be

OB O L SR
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distributed to PDR holders pro-rata on the first business day affar such cash dividends are received
by the Company. : :

Upon exercise of the PDRs, an exercige price of B{).05 per share shall be paid by the PDR halders.
The exercise price is shown as “Exercise fees™ mecount in the statements of comprehensive
income. Exercise fees amounted to 20.22 million, nil and #1.08 miltion in 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. ' ‘

Tmmediately prior to the closing of +the PDR offering and additional issuances described abave,
(3MA, to which the Company is affiliated, transferred 945,432,000 GMA shares t0 the Company
in relation to which the PDRs were issued. For as long as the PDRs are not sxercised, the shares
undertying the PDRs will continue to be registered in the name of and owned by the Company,
and all rights pertaining to these sharss, inchiding voting rights, shall be exercised by the
Company. The obligations of the Company to deliver the GMA shares on exercise of the right
contained in the PDRs are secured by the Pledge of Shares in favor of the Pledge Trustee acting on
behalf of sach holder of a PDR over the GMA shares. :

At any time after the PDR offering, a shareholder may, Bt his option and from time to time, deliver
shares to the Company in exchange for an equal number of PORs. The exchange is based on
prevailing traded value of GMA shares at the time of transaction with the corresponding PDR

option price. :

Az menticned above, the Company retains the rights to receive the cash flows from its investment
in GMA and assumes a contractual cbligation to pay +hose cash flaws to the PDR holders, net of
operating expenses (8 “pass-through” arrangement). The *nags-through” test is met because the
Company (a) has no obligation to the FDR holders uniess it collects equivelent amounts from its
investment in GMA, (b) is contractually prohibited from selling or pledging its investment in
GMA other than as security to the PDR holders for the obligation to pay the cash flows, and

(¢) has an obligation to remit any oash flows from the investment in GMA fo the PDR holders

without material delay.

Under the “pass-through” test, the Company is desmed to have transferred substantially the risks
and rewards of its investment in GMA. Accordingly, the investment in GMVA and the lisbilities
related to the issuance of the PDRs are not recognized by the Company.

The following are the details and mavements of the PDRs and the underlying GMA shares for the
years ended December 31;

PDRs MNumber of Shares
. 2012 2011 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year $7,326,6068,500 B7,3526,668,500 861,961,000 £61,961,000
Exercise of PDRs £37.,835,200) - (4,451,200} -

Balance at end of year ®7.288,833,300 7 336.668.500 857,500,800 861,961,000

On August 1, 2012, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of 80.26 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to £223.87 million 10 all shareholders of record
as at August 22, 2012. These ware remitted to PDR holders on September 14, 2012.

On March 28, 2012, the Company approved 2 cash distribution to PDR holders of 0.40 per shars,
0 relation fo dividends declared by GMA, sotaling to B344.62 millien t© gll shareholders of record
g5 2t April 16, 2012. These wers remitted to FDR holders on May 9, 2012.
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Qn Mal:"ch 11, ;Dl 1, the Company approved cash distribution to PDR holders of #0.43 pér sharé,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to 387,88 million to all shareholders of record
as at April 8, 2011. These were remitted to PDR holders an May 6, 2011

Event after Reporting Period ‘ o
On March 21, 2013, the Company approved cash distribution to PDR holders of #0.25 per share,

in relation to dividends declared by (IMA to ali shareholders of record as at April 17, 2013,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

: 2012 . - 2011
Cash an hend and in banks P3,752,085 81 423,829
Short-term deposi_ts : ' 458,300,468 46,435,178

248,061,553 850,059,007

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of up to three (3) months depending on the :mmediate cash requirements of the
Clompany, and earn interest at the respective shori-term deposit rates.

Interest income earned from bank depasits and short-term deposits amounted to B1.69 million,
21.97 million and 22.68 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

" oeonnis Payable and Other Current Liabilities

2412 2011
Accounis payable 20,010 P6,580
Accrued expensss;
Professional and trust fees 470,989 231,154
Others 2,130 , 3,298
Withhoiding tax payable 44 -
R483.073 2241,032

Accounts payable and accrued expenses are noninteresi-bearing and are normally settled within
the next financial year. Accrued expenses represent acerued audit fees, retainers’ fees and petty

cash expenses.
Withholding tax payable represents lighilities to the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) for the

remittance of final faxes withhield on dividend payments made to PDR holders. These are
noninterest-bearing and are expected to be remitied within 15 deys after reporting period.

Tguity

1n 2012, the Company declared B259 per share cash dividends amounting to 82.59 million to all
stockholders of record as of Mey 25, 2012, This was paid on June 8, 2012,

' The Company has no dividend declaration in 2011,

1n. 2010, the Company declared £300 per share casht dividends amounting o £3.00 million to all
stackholders of record as at May 25,2010, This was paid on June 4, 2010,
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The followiqg summarizes the information on the Company’s regisﬁation of securities with the
SE(C as required by Securitiss Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011):

Authorized Number
MNumber of lzsued Issue/
Date of SEC approval of shares Shares Offer Price
July 30, 2007 945,432,000 945,432,000 ®8.50
9. Operating Expenses
) 2012 2011 2010
Listing fees »560,275 £2695,085 £R01,622
Professional fees 479,835 527,005 402,080
Taxes and licenses 33,239 27,129 24,274
Others 24,605 17,176 29,990
21,097,954 P1,266,395 21,264,966
10. Income Taxes
Current Income Tax _
The components of the Company's provision for current income tax are a3 follows:
2012 2011 2010
Final tax interest p337,512 B303,718 B8536,312
MCIT 4,451 ' - _ 21,661
2341,963 $1363,718 2557,673

The recenciliation of the provisicn for income tax computed at stawtory income tax rate and the
provision for income tax &s shown ir the statements of comprehensive income is summarized as

follows:

2012 2011 2010
Tncemes tax computed at statutory
income tax rate. £243,420 »210,569 2749 840
Deduction in income tax resulting from - ' ‘
Interest income from short-term
placemnents and bank deposits :
already subjected 10 final tax {168,526) {196,860} (268,157}
Change in unrecognized deferred tax )
agsets . 723,368 - —
798,262 £13,709 2481,6835
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Deferred Tax Asseis
The componenis of deferred tax assets follow:

2012 2011

{Unrecognized) (Recognized)

MCIT »16,112 »21,661
NOLCO 697,256 434 638
B713,368 B456,200

As st Desember 31, 2012, NOLCO and MCIT that can b
due and faxable income, respectiyeiy:

MCIT

e claimed as deduction from future RCIT

Date Paid/Ingurred Carryforward Benefit Up To NOLCC
Decamber 31, 2010 December 31, 2013 £21,661 2152,008
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2014 - 1,266,695
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2015 A.451 875,394
226,112 B3 324187
The movements in NOLCO and MCIT follow:

2012 2011

NOLCO:. :
Dalance at the beginning of the year 21,448,793 R182,098
Additions 875,394 1,266,693
Balance at end of year 271,324,187 B1,448,793

MCIT:

Balance at the beginning of the year P21,601 £21,661
Additions 4,451 —
Balance at end of year 226,112 R11,661

1l

Related Party Disclosures

Parties ere considered to be reluted if one party hes the ab
the other party or exercise significant influence over the o
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be el

control.

Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Partiss

Transactions with related parties have been entered into at terms no
been obtained if the iransactions were entered inte with unrelated part
trensactions have been entered into by the Company with its related parties.

directly and indirectly, to gentrol

ther party in makin
ated if they are subject to common

g finenciai and

less favarable than could have
ies, In 2012 and:2011, no

Amount/Volume Due to
Categary Year  of Transactions Shargholders Terms Conditions
Shareholders : ’
Portion of proceeds retained 2612 = 47,271,600 Upon demend, non- Unsecured
frorn issuance of PDRs 2011 - 49,271,600  interest bearing

The outstanding balances of “Due to Selling‘Shareholders” pert
to 20,05 per PDR which was retained by the Company, asthe PDR

il %‘ﬂlIl!il“:lilil‘\llillllEi&liﬂ%iI\H!Hﬂ!i!iﬂﬁili[ii

#ins to the option price amounti
issuer, in consideration for the
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rights granted under the PDRs. In accardance with the terms and conditions of the PDR offer, the

Company agrees that on exercise of any PDRs, only the exercise price amounting 23 45 shall be
payable.

The Company’s key management personnel are employed by GMA and no part of their salaries
was allocated to the Company. ‘

12.

Tinancial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s principal financial snstruments ipclude cash and cash equivaients. The main
purposes of thess financial instruments include raising fAnancing for the Company’s operations
and managing identified financial risks. The Company has other financial assets and iiabilities
such as accounis receivable, accounts payable and other current liehilities (excluding withholding
tax payable) and due to shereholders, which arise dirsctly from its operations. The main risks
arising from the Company’s finaneial instruments are liquidity risk, interest rate risk and credit

risl.
The BOD reviews and approves the Company’s objectives and paiiciss.

Liguidiry Risk. The Company ig exposed to the possibility that adverse changes in the business
environment and/or its operations would result in substantially higher working capital
requirements and subsequently pose difficulty in financing the additional working capital.

The Company manages its Hquidity risk by using its cash-and cesh equivalents from operations to
mest its short-term liquidity needs. The Company likewise regularly evaluates other financing
instruments and arrangements o broaden the Campany’s range of financing sources.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company'’s financial assets used for
liquidity risk management purposes and financial Habilities based on sontractual undiscounted

peyments as at Decamber 31

2012
On Demand 3 to 12 Months _ Total
Cash and cash equivalents B48,061,553 B~  P4B061,553
Accounts payable and other
surrent liabilities* 483,029 P B483,029
Due to shareholders ‘ 47,271,600 — 47,271,600
B47,754,029 B 247,754,620
2012
‘ On Demand 1 o 12 Monihs Total
Cash and cash equivalents 250,056,007 - 2~ B50,059,007
Accounts payable and other
current liabilitles* . B241,032 B P241,032
Due to shareholders , 47,271,600 — 47,271,600
247,512,632 - B47.512,632

' #Ereinding withiwlding tox payaiie whicl ts ot ronsidared or g financial Hatilin,
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to & regsonably possible change in interest raies,
with ali other variables held constant, of the Company’s income before income tax from reporting
period up to next reporting period, There is no impact on the Company’s equity other than those
already affecting profit or loss. '

[ncrease Effect on

CDecraase) in  Income Before

Basis Points Income Tax

2012 50 P240,283
(50 (240,283)

2011 50 250,285
(30) (250,295)

Credit Risk. Credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controlled by the application of
credit approvais, limits and monitoring procedures, It is the Company’s policy to enter into
transactions with a diversity of creditworthy parties to mitigats any significant coneentration of
cradit rigk, The Company ensures fhat services are made to customers with appropriate credit
history. The Company has an internal meshanism o monitar the granting of credit and
management of credit €XposUres. The Company has made provisions, where necessary, for
potential losses on credits extended, The Company’s eXposure to credit risk arises from default of
the counterparty with a maximum exXposure equel to the carrying amount of the instruments. The
Company does not require any collateral for its financial assets. ‘

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Company using high grade and standerd
grade as internal credit ratings.

High Grade, Pertainsto 2 counterparty who is not expected by the Company o defauit in sattling_
its obligations, thus, credit risk exposure is minimal. This normally includes iarge prime financial

‘nstitutions and related parties,
Standerd Grade, Other financial assets not classified as high grade are included in this category.

The Company classified iis oash and cash equivelents (extciuding cash on hand) and accounts
receivable as high grade financial assets as at December 31,2012 and 2011

A at Depember 31, the aging analysis of aceounis receivable is as follows:

. 2011 2011
Meither past due nor impaired P253,432 £203,539

Past due but not impaired: :
31-50 days - -
£1-150 days _ - -
151-365 days - 3C0
P253,432 R204,339

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management ig to ensure thet it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder

yaelue.

L RN 0 T T



-15-

The Company manages its capital structure and mekes adjustments to it, in the light of changes in
e:.:cmomic conditions. To maintzin or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to sharcholders, payoff existing debts, return capital to sharehojders or issue
nesy shares.

No changes were mads in the chjectives, policiss or processes for the three years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Thg Company’s capital management is undertzken by GMA. The capital includes the total sguity,
which amounted to £0.67 million and £3.25 millien as at December 31, 2012 and 2011,

respectively,

13,

Financial Assets and Linbilifies

The table below presents the carrying values and fair values of the Company’s financial
instruments. by category and by class, as at December 31 ‘

2012 _ 2011
Carrying Yaiue Fair Value Canmying Value Fair Value
Financinl Assets
Loans and receivables: ' : _
Cazh and cash equivalents B48,061,553 248,061,553 pa0,050,007 £50,059,007
Accounts receivable 253,427 253,432 204338 204,339

p48,314,985 P48.314,985 250,263,346 250,263,240

Finaneial Liabilities
Other financial ligbilities:
Accounts payableand | ) '
other current liabilities* - P483,029 2483028 241,032 2241,032
Tine to shareholders 47,271,600 47,271,600 47,271,600 47,271,600
' 247,754,629 247,754,029 247,512,632 £47,512,0632

= Excinding withholding tox payable which (s nof ronsidared as @ financial fiabiilan

The carrying values of the above financial instruments are the approximate fair values due o the
relatively short-term maturity.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The Company uses the Tollowing hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair valus of

Ffinancial instruments by valuation technique:

a Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active merkets for identical assets or Habilities:

b. Level 2 - inputs other than guated prices included within Level | that are observable for the
asset or liability, either dirsctly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived fram prices); and

o. Level 3 - inputs for the ascet or liability that are not pased on observable market dafa

(unobservable inputs}.

As af December 31, 2012 and 2011, there were 10 financial assets measured at fair value using '

any veluation techniques.
Theré were no transfers between Level 1 and_ Levei 2 fair value measurements, and 0o {ransfers
ito and out of Level 3 fair vajue measnrements during the years ended December 31, 2012 and

2011,
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14. Basic/Diluted Tarnings Per Share Computation

Basic/diluted EPS is computed as follows:

. 2012 -0 2010

Nat income attributable to equity holders (a) 213,139 BG88,187 22,017,783
Common shares issues at beginning and end ' .

of veer (b) 10,000 10,000 10,000

Buasic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (a/b) 2131 £263.82 r201.78

15. Supplementary Information Required by Revenue Regulntions (RR) MNo. 19-2011
and 15-2010 :

RR 19-2011

RR 19-2011 was issued to prescribe the new BIR forms that will be used for Income Tax filing
covering and starting with December 31, 2011, and to modify Revenue Memorandum Cireular
No. 57-2011 dated November 25, 2011, :

The following are the schedules prescribed under existing rEvenie issuances applicable to the
Company as at December 31, 20128

a. Schedule of ltemized Deductions

Professional fees 2479835

Taxes and licenses 33,239

Miscellaneous 24,605

Others - listing fee 560,273

21,097,954

b. Taxes and Licenses

- Official Receipt Number Date paid Amount
Mayor’s Permit A3COR1580250-5 January 17,2012 229,250
Barangay Clearance 5967379 January 17, 2012 1,650
Community Certificate 944388 January 18,2012 1,839
Annual Registration EFP3 January 31, 2012 500
: £33,239

RR 15-2010 |
The Company reported and/or paid the following types of taxes in 2012

s Value Added Tax (VAT)

The Company’s purchases from VAT-registered individuals or corporations &re subject 1o
input VAT. The VAT rate iz 12%.

Balance at January 1 R30,429
Currsnt year's domestic purchases for: 1 _

Services lodged under other accounts 69,367
Total claims at December 31 £09,796

I R TR



. Other Taxes and Licenses

Ali other local and national taxes paid for the year ended December 31, 2012 consist off

Local texes and license fees
Registration fees 500

833,230

¢. Withholding Taxes

Withhiclding taxes paid and/or withheld for the year ended December 31, 2012 consist of:

B52,487,161
C11,248
R52,498,410 .

Final withholding tax
Bxpanded withholding tax

232739
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BOAPRC Reg. No, G061, '
December 28, 2012, valid urtil Deeambear 31, 2018
SEC Acoreditation No. 001 2-FR-3 (Group A,
novamber 15, 2012, valid until Movember 1B, 2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockiolders and the Board of Directors
GMA Holdings, Ing.

Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place
New Benifacio Global City

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of
GMA Holdings, Inc. as at December 3 1,2012 and 2011 and for ench of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2012, included in this Form 17-A, and have issued our report therzon dated
Mareh 21, 2013, Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an ppinjon on the basic financial
staternents taken as a whole, The schedules iisted in the Index to Financial Statements and
Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. These schedules are
presented for purposes of complying with Securities Regulation Cade Rule 68, As Amended (2011),
and are not part of the basic financial statements, These gehedules have been subjected 1o the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, inall
material respects, the information required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial

staternents taken as 2 whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Clairma T. Mangangey
Partner
C'PA Certificate No. 86858
SEC Accreditation No. 0779-AR-1 (Group Al
February 2, 2012, valid unti] February 1, 2015
Tax [dentification No. 129-434-867
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-67-2012,
Aprii 11, 2012, valid until. Aprii 10, 2015
PTR No. 3669697, January 2, 2013, Makati City

March 21, 2013

qit eetit epar KT TRITC EITETTREY



GMA HOLDINGS, INC. -

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY
SCHEDULES
A8 AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

I. Supplemental schedules required by Annex 68-B

A. Financial assets Atiached

B. Amounts receivable from directors, officers, employees, Not applicable:
related parties and principel stockholders (other than
related parties) '

¢ Amounis of receivables from related parties which are Not applicable
eliminated during consolidation process of financial '
statements

I. Intangible assets - other asset Not applicable

E. Long-teric debt. Nat épplicable

F. Indebtedness to related parties Not applicable

G. Guarantses of securities of other issuers Not applicable

H. Capital stock - Attached

. Schedule of all the effective standards and interpretations Attached

ML Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Attached
Declaration :

IV, Map of the relationships of the Company within the Group Not applicable
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
SUPFLEMENTAL SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 68-E
A8 AT DECEMBER 31,2012
Schedule A. Financial Assets
: Amount shown  Value based on
Name of Issuing entity ~ Number of shares or  in the statemezis market quotation Income
and association of each  principal amount of of finapcial atend of TeCeived end
issue bonds and rates position reparting period accrued
Cash
On hand B £5,000 F—- B
Tn banks — 2,747,085 - - 28,266
_ - 2,752,083 78 266
Cagh equivalents
Union Bank of - . - .
the Philippines 20,611,244 885,507
Bance De 0o — . 24,698,234 - 672,622
- 43,309,468 - 1,658,529
B B48,061,553 B P],686,795
Schedule H. Capital Stock
Number of Number of
Shares Issued and Sharey
Qutstanding as Reserved for
Shown Under Options,
Related - Warrants,  Number of
Number of Statements of Canversion  Shares Held Directcrs,
Title of - Shares Financial and Other by Related QOfficers, and
Issne Authorized  Position Caption Rights Parties Employees  Others
Common 10,000 10,000 - — 10,000 -
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC. ,
S TPPLEMENTARY SCHAEDULE REQUIRED UNDER SRC RULE 68, A8 AMENDED (2011}
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012 ,

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements '
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative
characteristics
PIFRSs Practice Stntement Management Commentary
Philippine Finnacial Reporting Standards
PrRS 1 Firsi-time Adoption of Phitippine Financial
(Revised) Reporting Standards '

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost
of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or Associate
Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional
Fxemptions for Firse-time Adopters
‘Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited
Exemption from Comparative PFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Sevare
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Date
for First-time Adopters :
| Amendments to PFRS 1: Government
Loans

PERE 2 Share-basad Payvment

R mendments to PFRS 2: Vesting

Conditions and Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-
. gettled Share-based Payment Transactions

%

L

PFRS 3
(Revised) Business Comtbinations

PEFRS 4 Tnsurance Confracts
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4:
Finagncial Guarantes Contracts _
PFR3 5 | Nonegurrent Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations

PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral
Resources _
PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
‘Reclassification of Financial Assels
Amendments to PAS 33 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets -
Effactive Date and Transition
Amendments ta PFRS 7: Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instrumenis
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosurss -
Transfers of Financial Assets

RN S RN IR EN
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£ RE
Amendments to PFRS 7; Disclosures —~
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financinal
. Linbilitiss '

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatery
Effective Date of PFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures

PTRS 8 Operating Segments
PFRS 9% Financial Instruments
Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory
PFRS 10* Effective Date of PFRS 5 and Transition
Disclogurss
Consolidated Financial Statements
PFRS 11+ Joint Arrangements
PFRS 12* Dizclosure of Interests in Other Entities
PFRS 13* Fair Value Measurement
Philippine Accounting Standards
PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements s
{(Revised) Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclogures '
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1 o
Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liguidation
Amendments 1o PAS 1: Presentation of
Ttems of Other Comprehensive Income
PAS 2 Tnventories. '
PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows v
PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in v
Accounting Estimates and Brrors
PAS 10 Tvents after the Reporting Period '
PAS 11 Construction Contracts v
PAS 12 Tncome Taxes v
PAS 16 Amendment ta PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: o+
Recovery of Underlying Assets )
Property, Plant and Equipment ¥
PAS 17 Teases v
PAS 18 Revenue v
PAS 18 Employes Benefits s
Amendments to PAS 12 Agtuarial Gains e
and Logses, Group Plans and Disclosures
PAS 15 Employes Benefits
(Amended)”
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Jovernment Assistance
PAS 21 The Bffects of Changes in Foreign v

Exchange Rates

Amendment; Net Investment ina Foreign
Operation
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Decemb 20

PAS 23
(Revised)

Borrowing Costs

PAS 24
(Revised)

Related Party Disclogures

PAS 26

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement
Benefit Plans '

PAS 27

Consalidated and Separate Financial
Statements '

PAS 27
(Amended)”

Separate Financis! Statements

PAS 28

Tovestments in Associates

PAS 28
(Amended)”

Tnvestments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

PAS 29

Financial Reporting in Hypednﬂatianary
Economies .

PAS 31

Tntarests in Joint Ventures

PAS 32

Fipancial Instruments: Presentation

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS L
Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liguidation

Amendment to PAS 32 Classification of
Rights Issues -

Amendments to PAS 32: Offseiting
Tinancial Assets and Financial Iiahilities

PAS 33

Barnings per Share

PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

PAS 36

Impairment of Assels

PAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

Y NN S

PAS 38

Intangible Assets

PAS 39

Timonoial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

-i“\

Amendments {o PAS 35 Transition and
Initial Recognition of Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 38: Cash Flow Hedgs
Accounting of Forecast Intragroup
Transactions

ot

Amendments to PAS 35: The Fair Value
QOption ‘

Amendments o PAS 39 and PFRS 4
Financial Guarantee Contracts

Armencments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS T:
Replassification of Financial Assets -
Effective Date and Transition’

o o 4 N

~Amendments to Philippine Interpretation




TFRIC-9 and PAS 3% Embeddad
Derivatives

WHBEX I
Psge 4 of 3

Nmendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedgsd v
liems )
Investment Property o

PAS 40 Agriculture W

PAS 41 '

Philippine Interpretations

IFRIC 1 Changes in Eadsting Decommissioning, v
Restoration and Similer Liabilitics

IWRIC 2 Members' Share in Co-operative Entities of
and Stmilar Instruments

IFRIC 4 Determiming Whether an Arrangement s
Containg a Lease

FRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from v
Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmenta] Rehabilitation Funds J

IFRIC 6 Taabilities arising from Participating in a e
Specific Market - Waste Hlectrical and
Electronic Equipment

IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under 4
PAS 20 Financial Reporting n
Hyperinflationary Fconommies

IFRIC 8 Scope of PFRS 2 v

IFRICHY Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives K

FRIC 10 Armendments to Philippine Interpretation A
TFRIC-9 and PAS 39: Embedded '
Derivaiives

TFRIC 11 Titerim Financial Reporting and 4
Impairment

IFRIC 12 PFRS 2- Group and Treesury Share 4
Transactions

WRIC 13 Service Concession Arrangements

FRIC 14 Customer Loyalty Programmes v -
The Limit oo a Defined Benefit Assel, o
Minimum Funding Reguirements and their
Interaciion

IFRIC 16 Amendments to Philippine Interpretations
[FRIC- 14, Prepayments of 2 Minimum
Funding Requirement '
Hedges of a Net Tovestment in a Foreign v
Operation

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets 10 v
Owners '

FRIC 18 Transters of Assets from Customers <

IFRIC 19 Frringuishing Financial Lisbilities with v
Fouity Instruments

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phage of

a Surface Mine
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Introduction of the Buro
51C-10 Government Assistance - No Specific
Relation to Operating Activities
SIC-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities
Amendment to 81C - 12: Scops of SIC 12
51C-13 Taintly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary
Corntributions by Venturers
SIC-18 Operating Leases - Incentives
S22 3 5y
Aprets ‘
8IC-25 Tncome Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status
of an Ertity or its Shareholders
SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
nvolving the Legal Form of a Lease
51C-29 Service Concession Arrangentents:
Disclosures.
SiC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving |
Advertising Services

Intengible Asscts - Web Site Costs

| S1C-32

Note: Standards and Interpretations ui
December 31, 2012 but for which no transac

2012 2011 and 2010 are deemed covered.

=y 2

der the “Not Applicable
jions of the Company for the years ended December 31,

" nolumn dre effective as at.’



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE

FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Unappropriated retained earnings, beginning 23,150,276
Adjustments — :
Deferred tax assets, beginning _ {456,299)
Unappropriated retained eernings, as adjusted, beginning 2,693,977
Net meome during the year closed 1o retained earnings 13,139
Dividends declaration during the period (2,593,997)
Retained earnings - available for '
®113,119

dividend declaration as at December 31,2012




GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS (SRC Rule 68, as amended October 2011)

The key performance indicators that the company monitors are the following:

2012 2011
Gross revenues 222,560 -
Cash operating expenses 1,097,954 1,266,394
EBITDA 811,401 701,897
Net income before tax 811,401 701,897
Net income after tax 13,139 688,188

2012 2011
Current ratio 1.01 1.06
Assets-to-Equity ratio 72.34 15.62
Debt-to-Equity ratio 71.34 14.62
Interest Rate Coverage Ratios Not applicable Not applicable
EBITDA margin 365% Not applicable
Net income margin 6% Not applicable



5. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA HOLDINGS, INC., of any
changes in the above-mentioned information within five (5) days from its
occutrence. | : |

Done this 4™ day of April 2013 at Makati City.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this{@m day of April 2013 at Makati City,
affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Passport Number

XX3820603 issued on May 27, 2009 by the DFA, Manila.

Doc. No. 4~ Notary Public
Page No. _—__g
Book No. _/
Series of 2013.

IIN RONALR DM ALZONA
Appoistmant No. #-101
Notary Putlic far Marat City
totil Dosember 31, 2013

Ro#t Mo, 20104
BTR No., 368057 8:31-11 20121 takall Clty
180 pe, G324 1-A yilakat City

MM
V. data Conta 8t , Safasdo Yilege
1akati City '



1203 Acacia Street, Damari
accordance with law,

CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT-DIRECTORS

i, ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN, Filipino, of le
Ras Village, Makati City,
do hereby declare that:

gal age, and with office address at
after having been duly sworn-to in

1. 1 am an Independent Director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC,;

2. | am affiliated with the following companies or organizations:
Company/Organizations Fosition/Relationshi Period of Service
First Philippine Holdings Corporation Independent Director resent
Wetro Pacific Investments Corporation Independent Director 2007 - present
Manila Electric Company Independent Director 2008 - present
Robinsons Land Corporation independent Director 2008 - present
GMA Network, Inc. Independent Director 2007 - present -
Petron Corporation independent Director 2010 - present
Bank of Pl Independent Dirgctor 2010 - present
Metro Pacific Tollways Corporation ndependent Directof 2010 - present
Asian Terminals Independent Director 2010 - present
Metropolitan Bank | Senior Adviser 2007 - present
Philiopine Long Distance Tel. Co. Independent Adviser 2009 - present
Philippine Daily Inquirer 2007 - present

| Jollibee Foods Corporation Director 2012 - present
(For my full bio-data, log to my personal website: cjpanganiban.ph)

3. | possess all the quéliﬂcations and none of the disgualifications to serve as an
independent Director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC,, as provided for in Section 38 of
the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations.

4. I shall faitnfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
Independent Director under the Securities Regulation Code. '

5. | shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA HOLDINGS, INC., of any changes

in the above-mentioned information within five (5) days from its occurrence.

gk . .
Done this /___ day of April, 2013 at Makati City.

ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN
Affiant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this __/_52_& day of April, 2013 at Makati City,
affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Diplomatic Passport
Number TEO0009999 issued on January 21, 2012 by the DFA, Manila and will expire on
January 20, 2017, :

Doc; No. ﬁ

Page No. _9_
Book No. 7 o "
Series of 2013. A im}ﬁ?« Nﬁﬁ &aﬁﬁﬁmh

potany Public for Makat City
Until Cacember 31, 2013
Rt No. 53104
PTR No. 366081 11 A
ISP Mo, 923422470103~
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